
zc min apr 21 10 1

ZONING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING April 21, 2010 

 
Joe Savarese opened the Regular Meeting at 6:05 P.M. with the following in attendance: 
 
MEMBERS:      OTHERS: 
Joe Savarese, Chair     Public: 0 
Diana Raczkowski, Vice Chair,             Keith Rosenfeld, WEO 
Stanley Jaroneczyk, arrived at 6:10 PM  Rachel Brainard, Secretary 
Neil Mascola       
Richard Cool       
    
1.   Joe Savarese opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance and then took   

attendance. At this point, it was determined that a quorum was present.  
2.   No Executive Session. 
3.   Approval of minutes and the secretary will sign previously approved minutes. 

VOTED:  Unanimously on a motion by Diana Raczkowski and seconded by Neil 
Mascola to APPROVE the March 23, 2010 special meeting minutes with the 
following Amendment. 

 Item 5B add the following to the VOTE: To have signs on them stating they are 
for sale and not used for storage. Applicant: Avenue Auto Body. 

 
4.     OLD BUISNESS: 
 

A.  Commission Discussion/Decision for Special Permit Application regarding a Bus 
Terminal and Maintenance Service Center located on 125 South Main St. and 35 
Hotchkiss St.  Applicant: PAR Holdings, LLC.  The Commission agreed to 
continue the Public Hearing for May 19, 2010 at 6:45 PM. 

 
      B.  Sub-committee discussion regarding the following items: Signs, Alcohol, Tents. 

Joe Savarese stated that he is currently trying to simplify the wording.  Keith 
asked what the physical dimensions of the signs would be.  Mr. Savarese replied 
that the largest is 4 x 8.  Joe continued to say that he thinks they should be 
simplified and made easier to understand and realize that technology has changed 
and to have general regulations.  Richard mentioned that he had sent some 
information to Ned on Alcohol and that he is waiting for him to respond.  Diana 
suggested that the discussion on tents be postponed. 
 

C.  Commission Discussion on Rezoning.  Joe Savarese explained that they are still 
 waiting to get information from WPCA.  Diana asked if we are waiting for the 
 report before scheduling a hearing and if the sewer issue was the only reason for 
 changing the zoning.  Keith responded that it was the only reason that this whole 
 issue was instigated.  Diana responded that the regional plan was altered and is in 
 good standing now but that it is in jeopardy of being violated in the future.  The 
 discussion continued and Diana reiterated that the issue isn’t just sewer and water 
 but also services and she asked that Keith prepare a report.  Diana also mentioned 
 that there is school overcrowding and Keith said that a report from the education 
 department would be needed.  Diana stated that justification is needed from the 
 town planner. Keith suggested that a public hearing be opened for those specific 
 properties.  Diana commented that she has been asking for that for three months 
 and that time is being wasted.  Keith said he would ask Wayne to produce a final 



zc min apr 21 10 2

 document that shows those properties that meet the rural standards of ten acres or 
 more.  Diana asked that by the next meeting a map and an application be 
 presented and then a special meeting can be scheduled. 

 
5.     NEW BUISNESS:  
 
  VOTED:   Unanimously on a motion by Diana Raczkowski and seconded by Neil 

 Mascola to add Columb Realty, LLC Grasshoper Lawns, Inc., 25 Mallane Lane to 
 the agenda. Attny McSherry explained that in 1979 a zone change was requested 
 for the properties which today are known as Melissa Court and 25 Mallane Lane.  
 The request was granted for a zone change from R-8 to I-2 in April 1979.  In 1986 
 an application was submitted to change Melissa Court from I-2 to RA-1, but the 
 request was denied. In 1990 there was a transfer of ownership of Melissa Court to 
 ERL Development and they requested a zone change from I-2 to R-8 which was 
 granted. Attorney McSherry continued to say that somewhere along the line 
 someone recorded the map showing 25 Mallane Lane also as an R-8 zone even 
 though there was never a petition or public hearing to change this property and the 
 records are incorrect.  He asked that the commission now make a motion that 
 acknowledges that it was an error and that 25 Mallane Lane is recorded as an I-2 
 zone.  Attorney McSherry submitted copies of minutes and a letter to the 
 commission.  Diana suggested getting copies of the map that shows the property 
 zoned as I2 to submit to Land Use for their records which Attorney McSherry 
 then provided.  He also submitted to the commission a copy of the 1983 zone 
 map for the file record, a letter to Joseph Savarese dated March 19, 2010 along 
 with two maps from 1983/1986 that substantiate the claim. Attorney 
 McSherry also submitted a map of Melissa Court Subdivision that shows the 
 property, Map #3 1990. 

  VOTED:  Unanimously on a motion by Diana Raczkowski and seconded by 
 Neil Mascola to correct scribners error in the zoning designation of  25 
 Mallane Lane from R-8 to I-2 that was not properly recorded and that the Land 
 Use office send the minutes of this meeting to the Assessors office. 

 
    A. Commission Discussion for a proposed Office Building located at 27 Andrew  

  Ave. and 56 Rubber Ave, (Risdon Property).  Applicant: A Better Way Auto  
  Wholesaler LLC.  Keith submitted into record a letter asking for a one   
  month extension until the May meeting. This discussion was tabled until the May  
  19, 2010 meeting. 

 
  B. Accept Special Permit Application, Set Pubic Hearing; refer to Planning   

  Commission regarding a Conversation Area located on Gunntown Rd.   
   Applicant: Borough of Naugatuck.  Diana asked Attorney Fitzpatrick if the  

  original permit had expired as the new application shows less impact than what  
  was originally proposed. A discussion took place regarding the details of the  
  special permit and that it was put in granter book within the last few months.   
  Joe Savarese explained the background history and the struggle between the  
  conservation and athletic field and that the new proposal created less impact area.  
  There will no longer be a ball field, there will be a passive low impact recreation  
  area, natural meadow area used for wild life habitat, trails and fishing areas, and  
  everything else within the park will remain the same.  Keith mentioned that there  
  will be a small trail within wetlands that will be taken to the Inland Wetlands  
  commission. Mr. Savarese stated that the parking area has been reduced    



zc min apr 21 10 3

  dramatically with the new proposal.  Keith described the old plan for a parking lot 
  and that the new proposed parking lot would be made from porous material not  
  asphalt and that no drainage will be needed with little impact.  Diana asked if the  
  trails are shown on the map and Keith replied yes they are and that they are  
  proposed not existing. Attorney Fitzpatrick stated that he would like to refer it  
  under statute to Planning Commission and set a Public Hearing date.  Diana asked 
  for some detail on the porous material for the parking lot, how it works, how it  
  functions and ties into the soil and erosion.  Mr. Savarese mentioned that the  
  trails should be considered as well and also asked if there would be any impact on 
  the wetlands.  Keith responded that he wasn’t sure of the materials that would be  
  used and that there would not be any impact on the wetlands.  Diana asked who  
  would be maintaining the trails.  Keith responded that they would be maintained  
  through the Parks Department.  Mr. Savarese asked to get materials on this to the  
  Planning Commission.  Attorney Fitzpatrick requested that the permits reflect  
  what is on the map. Keith stated that all the wetlands disturbances have been  
  done.  Diana questioned the details on signs.  Joe commented that the State of Ct  
  has a listing of suggestions for parks. He asked if there would be any benefit to  
  have all of the  public hearings together as one.  Attorney Fitzpatrick responded  
  that the park commission has a separate charge and the Zoning Commission really 
  has a function part as to how it is implemented.  

 VOTED: Unanimously on a motion by Diana Raczkowski and seconded by 
Richard Cool to ACCEPT a Special Permit Application, refer it to the Planning 
Commission and set a Public Hearing on May 19th at 7:00 PM regarding the 
Conservation area located on Gunntown Road. Applicant: Borough of Naugatuck.   

       
6.   Commission Discussion for Change of Use applications.   
 Diana explained change of use and that the commission has an obligation to improve 
 the looks of the town.  Keith mentioned that there are site plan files in the Land Use 
 vault.  Diana said that the change of use regulations has been abused and that the 
 Commissions’ job is to uphold them. A discussion ensued about when certain things 
 are allowed and when generalizations are made especially with retail applications.   
            
   
7.   There was no Public Comment.    
                             
8.   There was no ZEO report. 
  
9.   There was no Chairman report. 
        
10. VOTED:     Unanimously on a motion by Stanly Jaroneczyk and seconded by Diana 
Raczkowkski to adjourn the meeting at 8:05 P.M.   

 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 
 
 
Neil Mascola, Secretary, rb/sk 
 
 
 
 



zc min apr 21 10 4

 
 

 
ZONING COMMISSION 

PUBLIC HEARING MEETING April 21, 2010 
For a SPECIAL PERMIT APPLICATION regarding A BUS TERMINAL AND 

MAINTENANCE SERVICE CENTER Located on  125 SOUTH MAIN ST. AND 35 
HOTCHKISS ST. APPLICANT: PAR HOLDING LLC. 

 
Joe Savarese opened the Public Hearing Meeting at 6:30 P.M. with the following in 
attendance: 
 
MEMBERS:      OTHERS: 
Joe Savarese, Chair     Public: 0 
Diana Raczkowski, Vice Chair          Keith Rosenfeld, WEO 
Neil Mascola      Rachael Brainard, Secretary 
Stanley Jaroneczyk, absent     
Richard Cool       
  
Scott Meyers, professional engineer with Meyers Associates P.C of 60 Linden Street, 
Waterbury CT, spoke on behalf of PAR Holdings, LLC regarding the property on 125 
South Main Street and 35 Hotchkiss Street.  He submitted certified mailing receipts, a 
notice sent out and an affidavit to the commission.  Keith read into the record two 
advertisements listed in the Citizens News on April 10, 2010 and April 16, 2010.  Keith 
also read into the record a referral from the Planning Commission, stating that on 
Monday March 1, 2010 the commission gave a positive referral to the Zoning 
Commission regarding a Special Permit given to the school bus facility of South Main 
and Hotchkiss St. PAR Holdings, LLC and was advertised March 5, 2010.  Joe Savarese 
stated that they received the land use applications from the Naugatuck Board of Police 
and Fire Commissions, and the WPCA, application from Meyers Associates statement of 
use, and the abutters within 200 ft. have been contacted.  Mr. Meyers stated that the site 
is two acres, in a B-2 zone, and that the bus facility will be using the southerly building 
on the site for the service area as well as some office and lunch room area. He continued 
to explain that there was a change of use on record and that NAPA will be moving into 
the former show room building and that there will be ample parking for both businesses.  
Mr. Meyers continued to state that as part of the proposal fifty buses will be on the site 
arranged in a systematic arrangement to provide adequate circulation as well as aisle 
space.  He noted that they have taken some recommendations given by the Zoning 
Officer, Steve Macary and Wayne Zirolli Borough Engineer, such as planting along 
Hotchkiss Street as well as creating small islands along the edge.  Mr. Meyers also stated 
that there will be a Public Hearing set to take place on May 5th on the application, and 
that Wayne had recommended that something be done with drainage on the site.  As a 
result they are proposing to install four foot catch basins and raise the westerly side of 
parking area and place outlets into Hotchkiss Street system. Diana commented that she 
thinks it would be wonderful to get buses to another site out of Aquifer protection area.  
Mr. Meyers stated that there will be an above ground 10,000 gallon storage tank for 
diesel, that the location of the tank has been approved by the Fire Department.  He stated 
that the owner of the property is Mr. Symco, the managing member of PAR.  Diana 
stated that she would like to see more screening on the outside possibly with shrubs to 
help aesthetics. Mr. Meyers responded that berms will be installed and that soil scientists 
are currently coming up with a planting scheme.  The street will be similar to South Main 



zc min apr 21 10 5

with trees. Diana suggested a site walk to be scheduled.  Diana asked that a sign be 
placed to direct buses not to use South Main but to use Hotchkiss. Joe Savarese asked if 
plantings on western side of exit could possibly block sight of on coming traffic and 
would that be an issue.  Mr. Meyers responded that there are low lying trees in that area 
and it shouldn’t be a visibility problem.  Diana asked the proximity of the nearest home.  
Mr. Meyers replied that the houses are across the street and would be at least 50 feet from 
the buses.  Mr. Savarese inquired about drainage.  Mr. Meyers replied that the current 
drainage was traced and that the river was high when they looked and believe the outlet is 
submerged.  Mr. Savarese questioned if there might be a concern of oil that might not be 
caught in the sumps and leak into the river due to the large number of buses on the 
premises.  Mr. Meyers added that one of the reasons the bus company would like to move 
is that at the current location on New Haven Rd. they do not have a service area or fuel 
storage facility.  Diana asked if there would be any altering of the buildings and Mr. 
Meyers replied that it would only involve possible painting and cosmetic work.  Diana 
replied that the commission may require some improvements to the buildings in the 
future.  Mr. Meyers submitted to the commission the soil and erosion plan for the 
property.  He stated that sheet two shows details of the plan, some of which were done 
after the initial application in February.  Diana requested copies of this. Diana requested 
that a start date and finish date be provided and that the top soil would need to be 
screened.  A site walk was set for Monday April 26, 2010 at 6:00 PM with a rain date of 
May 3, 2010 at 6:00 PM.  Keith presented a referral letter to the commission from the 
Council of Governments and the Alta Planning and Design regarding a greenway from 
Thomaston to Derby, and they are currently considering part of the area that runs in front 
of the proposed bus company as part of the greenway link.  He continued to explain that 
they are asking for a fenced easement 20 feet in width for the path.  He asked if this 
would be something that the commission would like to see done and that the town is a 
participating member of the greenway project.  Paul Symko, managing member of PAR 
Holdings LLC commented that an easement could go through the bus facility property 
however it would not work further up north as there are buildings that go right up to the 
river.  Joe Savarese suggested that Keith bring this issue up to the Greenway Committee.  
Diana stated that a decision cannot be approved at this time without going over more 
options to offer the applicant.  A discussion took place on the issue.  Mr. Symco stated 
that fill on the site was removed and tested and he feels they have improved the site and 
that the application is an economic viability. 
No public comment. The Public Hearing is recessed until the site walk scheduled for 
Monday April 26, 2010 at 6:00 PM with a rain date of May 3, 2010 at 6:00 PM. 
The Public Hearing will continue on May 19, 2010 at 6:45 PM 
 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 
 
Neil Mascola, Secretary, rb/sk 
 
 
The Commission resumed the regular meeting.  
 
 


	ZONING COMMISSION
	REGULAR MEETING April 21, 2010

